
  

 
 
 

P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G    C  O  M  M  I  S  S  I  O  N   A  G  E  N  D  A 
 

January 17, 2012  
6:00 p.m. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
ROLL CALL 

 
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Regular meeting of October 18, 2011   
 

2. COMMUNICATION 
 
a. Recent Council Actions   
b. Staff Comments 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION  

 
Comments are limited to a maximum of five minutes duration.  If more time is needed, please request 
staff to place the subject on an agenda for a future Commission meeting. 

 
* * * PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE * * * * 

A. Staff comments  C. Close hearing to the public 
B. Open the hearing to the public.  D. Commission discussion 

1.  Project applicant  E. Motion 
2.  Parties for the project  F. Vote 
3.  Parties against the project 
4.  Rebuttals 

 
NOTE:  Pursuant to Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001, any person may speak before the 
Commission regarding the matter under consideration for a maximum of five minutes unless granted 
additional time by the Chair. "In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a 
special accommodation to participate, please contact the Community Development Dept., at 872-6291 
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting."   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
January 17, 2012 - Page 2 

 
 
4.       CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARINGS – None. 
 
5.       PUBLIC HEARING  

 
a. Item for which an Initial Study has been prepared and for which a Negative Declaration is 

proposed to be adopted: 
 

VISINONI PARCEL MAP APPLICATION (PL11-00156): Planning Commission consideration of a 
parcel map application to divide an existing +/-3.3 acre property into four parcels of record for 
single-family residential use.  The project site, zoned Rural Residential–2/3 acre minimum (RR-
2/3), is located at 678 Buschmann Road in Paradise and is further identified as Assessor Parcel 
No. 052-360-007. 

 
  
6.       OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 a.  Discussion regarding the content of the current Procedural Rules of Conduct of Planning 

Commission Meetings and consideration of whether to direct staff to return with a Planning 
Commission Resolution rescinding Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001, resulting in 
changes to the current Procedural Rules. 

 
 

7.        COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES  
 
 
8.        COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
 a.     Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff)  

 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT  



 1                     Oct 18, 2011 

PARADISE PLANNING COMMISSION 
October 18, 2011 - 6:00 p.m. 

 Paradise Town Council Chambers 
5555 Skyway, Paradise, CA 

  
M   I   N   U   T   E   S 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Grossberger at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present at roll call were Commissioners Bolin, Jones, Woodhouse, Zuccolillo and Chair 
Grossberger.  Community Development Director Craig Baker was also present.     
 
1.       APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

a. Regular Meeting of September 20, 2011.  
 
It was moved by Commissioner Woodhouse, seconded by Commissioner Bolin and 
unanimously carried by those present to approve the minutes of the September 20, 2011 
Planning Commission meeting as submitted by staff. 
 
VOTE:  AYES:  Commissioners Bolin, Jones, Woodhouse, Zuccolillo and Chair 
Grossberger.   NOES:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT:  None.   

 
 MOTION CARRIES. 

 
2.       COMMUNICATION 

 
a. Recent Council Actions 

 
Mr. Baker reported on recent actions of the Town Council at their regular meeting of 
October 4, 2011: Adoption of Ordinance No. 523, Adding a Chapter to the Paradise 
Municipal Code Restricting Medical Marijuana Cultivation; Adoption of Resolution 11-
40, Designating a Landmark Tree at 1627 Meadowbrook Lane, the first landmark tree 
designation for the Town. 
 
b. Staff Comments  
 
Community Development Director Baker informed the Planning Commissioners of a free 
Planning Commissioner Training Workshop in Chico on Saturday, October 29 from 9 am 
to noon and encouraged their attendance at the workshop.   

 
3. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – None. 
 



 2                     Oct 18, 2011 

4.       CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING – None. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Following Community Development Director Baker’s announcement of the first public hearing, 
Planning Commissioner Jones stated that she is recusing herself from this item.   

 
a. Item for which an environmental impact report and an environmental assessment 
have been previously certified: 

 
PARADISE COMMUNITY VILLAGE MITIGATION MEASURE AMENDMENT 
REQUEST: Planning Commission consideration of a resolution recommending Town 
Council approval for amendments to mitigation measures contained within the 
environmental documents prepared and certified in 2007 for a previously-approved 
mixed-use planned development project.  If ultimately approved by the Town Council, 
the modification request would result in the implementation of an alternative formula 
for calculating traffic mitigation fees for the project, but is not intended to result in an 
overall reduction or elimination of the required fees.  The +/-48.38 acre project site, 
zoned Community Services/Planned Development (CS/PD), is located at the west end of 
Village Parkway in Paradise and is further identified as Assessor Parcel Nos. 054-380-
001 and 002. 
 

Community Development Director Baker explained that the request is for modification to two 
mitigation measures that are contained the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Paradise 
Community Village project and which are mirrored in the Environmental Assessment (EA); gave 
a brief background on the project describing the location, size and potential development planned 
for the site; and, discussed changes that have occurred since the project approval, which was 
originally envisioned to progress quickly with funding being provided by the sale of the single 
family homes planned for the site.  Since the downturn in the housing market for single family 
lots, the project is not progressing as planned.  The first phase of the project is progressing, 
facilitated primarily by grant funding and administered by the California Housing Improvement 
Program located in Chico.   
 
Mr. Baker briefly explained the process through which traffic signals for intersections are funded 
(mitigation fees), and that the developer submitted on  September 21, 2011, a request to the 
Town to modify two mitigation measures in the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to establish 
a “fair share contribution” towards the eventual signalization of the Buschmann Road/SR191 and 
Village Parkway/SR191 intersections, as the traffic impact of the first phase will be less than that 
of the entire project as originally proposed.  Mr. Baker stated that the Planning Commission is 
being asked to adopt a resolution that would forward a recommendation to the Town Council to 
hold a public hearing and to consider formally amending certain mitigation measures 4.3.1 and 
4.3.3 of the EIR and 14 and 15 of the EA for the Paradise Community Village project; and, that 
the proposed alternative formula is attached to the resolution document.    
 
Commissioner Woodhouse asked for clarification and Mr. Baker explained that if a resolution is 
adopted by the Town Council, fees would be due as each building, not each dwelling unit, is 
completed and issued a certificate of occupancy; that it is anticipated that Phase 1, the 
development of the affordable housing, will occur at a fast pace; that the funding is in place for 
the project; and, building permits must be pulled by the end of December 2011. 



 3                     Oct 18, 2011 

 
 Chair Grossberger opened the public hearing at 6:13 p.m.   
 
 Project Applicant:  
  

Steve Gibson, Executive Director for Paradise Community Village, thanked the 
Planning Commission, stated that Mr. Baker did a good job in summarizing the 
project, that when the project came forward four years ago a much faster build out 
was anticipated, and that the proposal does not reduce the fees but sets up more of a 
pro-rated share of cost as the elements come on line.  Otherwise, the cost to CHIP 
will make the project unaffordable.   
 
Commissioner Woodhouse asked if there would be any difficulty in obtaining 
tenancy and Mr. Gibson stated that the CHIP process is rigorous and competitive, 
and that the market study that was done proved to the funding sources that there is a 
market in this community that would fill the units to the extent that they would pay 
their way.  There will be 11 residential buildings in the project including a 
community building that has community services on site.     
 
Nicole Ledford, Northstar Engineering, stated that she thinks this process has 
clarified the timing and the payments for construction of the signals; and, they are 
working within the confines of where the development is at:  the approved EIR, the 
approved tentative map and a completed traffic analysis.   
 
Commissioner Bolin asked what happens if some of the planned development does 
not take place, as he has heard rumors about the middle school, the soccer fields and 
the skate park, and that he doesn’t see how the project would get to the $41,000 
without those projects.   
 
Ms. Ledford stated that she thinks there would be an overall requirement for the site, 
and if the lots aren’t going to the same use they would look at the equivalent traffic 
and if it’s going to provide less or more of that amount, and the development of the 
lots would be a Town decision.   
 
Commissioner Bolin asked if there is a trigger point for the signal to be built, and 
Mr. Baker stated there is a trigger point that relates to the percentage of vehicle trips 
assigned to each use, which is 50% for the Buschmann/Clark intersection and 75% 
for the Village Parkway/Clark (percentage of project buildout).  
 
Chair Grossberger asked if the rumors could be clarified (if some elements of the 
project aren’t going to happen), and if the necessary contribution will remain at 
$41,000; and Mr. Baker stated that they could not dispel any rumors, that staff and 
Cal Trans staff believe the figures are valid, that the figures associated with traffic 
analysis are estimates, that subsequent phases of the project will be subject to Town 
review and assessed independently, and that a development could come in that 
would generate more traffic than what is currently estimated and which could require 
a greater contribution than anticipated.  Mr. Gibson stated originally they anticipated 
that everyone would be paying their share at the same time and now they have 



 4                     Oct 18, 2011 

basically had to triage to pay a portion in order to move forward with the first phase 
of the development. 
 
Chair Grossberger stated that the percentage of the 100% required from the 
development would be a fair share apportionment and that she thinks this is a timing 
issue.     
 
Mr. Gibson stated that they have lived with rumors since the inception of the project. 
 
Mr. Baker stated there is the possibility of other future contributions towards the 
signal, for example, a 60-lot residential subdivision has been approved for property 
adjacent to Clark Road which is conditioned to contribute to the signal at such time 
as the project goes forward.  Other development above and beyond the PCV project 
would contribute towards signalization if it is found during an Environmental Impact 
Review (EIR) process that there would be a traffic impact upon the intersections. 
 
Commissioner Zuccolillo discussed the possibility of the housing project going in, 
but other parts of the project not building out, and asked if the last developer would 
be get stuck paying a larger portion of the signal cost, and asked if there is gap at 
build out, for example, if only $30,000 of the $41,000 was collected, then who pays 
the difference.  Mr. Baker stated that it is not proper and may not be legally 
defensible to exact from any developer more than their fair share of the impact.   
 
Mr. Gibson stated that they would have to wait and Ms. Ledford discussed that if 
different uses came in, their number of trips could be lower, and that traffic for the 
overall site could be lower – the 16.7% figure assigned to PCV will not change.  
 
Commissioner Zuccolillo questioned if the 50% is reached (that would require 
construction of a signal) and if the amount of mitigation fees collected come up short 
of the $41,000, where would the needed money come from.  
 
Mr. Baker stated that he does not think there is a definitive answer to the question, 
that signal projects completed in the Town since he has worked here have been 
primarily grant funded and have been Town of Paradise intersections, not State 
intersections.  
 
Chair Grossberger stated that she sees this as a matter of timing and a fair share issue 
as the applicant is not asking that the percentage or the total amount be changed and 
that the traffic generation anticipated for the total project will not occur with phase 
one development.  
 
Mr. Gibson stated that in the beginning it was not anticipated that they would have to 
“piecemeal” the project, and that it would be cost prohibitive for CHIP to move 
forward if the total 16.7% has to paid out at once.  

 
Attending Public: 
 
Jon Remalia asked about apportioned share, and how does one pay an apportioned 
share of an unknown, and suggested when the trips per day generated on the road 



 5                     Oct 18, 2011 

exceeds a given number, then use that traffic count as a trigger, and suggested using 
the City of Chico, with whom the Town has contracted, to look at the project and 
come up with ideas, and that using actual numbers generated in the subdivision 
makes more sense, and that he thinks everything is too up in the air.       
 
Chair Grossberger closed the hearing to the public hearing at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Commissioner Zuccolillo asked what happens if there is lack of funding for a traffic signal on the 
Cal Trans side, and Commissioner Woodhouse stated that it seems if the 50% is reached and 
there is no further funding then the Town is stuck in a catch 22 situation and there can be no 
further development on the PCV project.  

 
Community Development Director Baker stated, in response to Mr. Remalia’s question, that the 
current mitigation measures are based upon traffic counts and that Cal Trans, the agency 
responsible for the intersections, have reviewed and endorsed the modified mitigation measures.   

 
AGENDA ITEM 5(a):  It was moved by Commissioner Bolin, seconded by Commissioner 
Woodhouse, and carried by those participating, to adopt Resolution No. 11-07, A 
Resolution of the Town of Paradise Planning Commission Recommending Town Council 
Modification of Mitigation Measures Relating to the Environmental Impact Report and the 
Environmental Assessment for the Paradise Community Village Project.   
 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE:   
AYES:  Commissioners Bolin, Woodhouse, Zuccolillo and Chair Grossberger.   
NOES:     None.   
ABSTAIN:  Commissioner Jones. 
ABSENT:  None.   

 
 MOTION CARRIES. 
 
Community Development Director Baker announced that the decision of the Planning 
Commission may be appealed within the next seven (7) days.  
 
Community Development Director Baker announced the second public hearing scheduled as 
follows: 
 

b.  Item for which a mitigated negative declaration document has been previously 
certified: 

 
PARADISE IRRIGATION DISTRICT USE PERMIT MODIFICATION 
REQUEST (PL11-00302): Planning Commission consideration of a request to 
modify the terms and conditions assigned to a previously-approved use permit 
application authorizing the establishment of a water utility corporation yard and 
operations facility.  The requested modifications involve changes to the timing of 
project improvements construction relative to the issuance of building permits for 
the project and are not intended to relieve the project developer of any specific 
development standards or adopted mitigation measures assigned to the project. The 



 6                     Oct 18, 2011 

+/-3.4 acre project site, zoned Community Commercial (CC), is located at 6344 
Clark Road in Paradise and is further identified as Assessor Parcel No. 053-150-195. 

 
Community Development Director Baker reported to the Commission regarding the request of 
Paradise Irrigation District for modification to conditions of approval assigned to a use permit 
application relating to the establishment of a water utility corporation yard and operations 
facility; and, that the use permit was conditionally approved by the Planning Commission on 
October 19, 2010, subject to 48 conditions of approval.  If approved, the effect of the 
modifications would require construction of all paved interior roadways and parking areas and 
the construction of public street frontage improvements prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy rather than prior to issuance of building permits; and, allow issuance of a building 
permit prior to installation of an on-site fire hydrant provided no flammable materials were 
placed on the site until the hydrant is installed and functioning.    (Conditions #10, 28 and 36).  
Mr. Baker stated that the staff thinks the request is reasonable and the concerns are that frontage 
improvements must be in place prior to issuance of certificates of occupancy; that all fire access 
roadways be constructed and maintained in conformance with Fire Code requirements; and, that 
fire hydrants be in place and functioning prior to placement of any flammable materials on the 
site. Mr. Baker noted that there is a fire hydrant located on Clark Road that appears to be within 
500’ feet of the proposed building structures.   
 
Mr. Baker further indicated that this modification request is not unusual or unreasonable, and, in 
fact, the Fire Marshal confirmed that Fire Chief Cone has talked with other jurisdictional fire 
chiefs in the area who have indicated this is a common practice to allow slabs, metal framing 
erected, metal siding to be placed, and prior to any wood frames or lumber being brought onto 
the site, or interior finishing, that the onsite fire hydrant would need to be installed and 
functioning.        
 
Commissioner Bolin stated that there will be wood framing in the slabs, and Mr. Baker stated 
that the ‘combustible materials’ would be addressed to the satisfaction of the Fire Marshal, and 
that that particular concern is addressed in the wording of condition #28.    
 
 Chair Grossberger opened the public hearing at 6:45 p.m.   
  
 Project Applicant: 
  
 George Barber, Paradise Irrigation District Manager, stated that they have run into 

some hurdles relating to timing of construction, as they are water providers and not 
contractors; that they would like to be able to get the slabs poured and some 
construction done on metal buildings during the winter months; pointed out the fire 
hydrants located on the property; explained that they are managing a storm water 
plan that relates to the frontage improvements for which they have provided a 
required ballast section to remove mud from trucks as they enter and exit and to have 
to construct the frontage improvements first would defeat that purpose as they would 
have to pull all that out; and, that the request is reasonable and simple and would get 
the building permits issued.  Metal storage containers are on site to store hay bales 
and straw for storm water pollution prevention. 

 
 
  



 7                     Oct 18, 2011 

 Attending Public: 
 
 Jon Remalia stated that there is a big difference between combustible and flammable 

material in the Fire Code; that his big concern is that when construction is taking 
place that the fire access road needs to be in place; thinks a temporary access road 
will solve the issue; and, that every other developer will need to be treated the same 
way with regard to fire apparatus road being granted a waiver until structure is 
occupied.      

 
 Chair Grossberger closed the public hearing at 6:50 p.m. 
 
Community Development Director Baker stated that this is not a waiver of any specific 
requirements, and that the Planning Commission has broad discretion relating to use permits.   
 
Chair Grossberger confirmed that approval of this request would not imply that every future use 
permit would have to be similarly approved.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 5(b):  It was moved by Commissioner Jones, seconded by Commissioner 
Zuccolillo and unanimously carried by those present (1) To adopt the findings “a” through “c” 
listed below; and, to approve the PARADISE IRRIGATION DISTRICT USE PERMIT 
MODIFICATION REQUEST (PL11-00302) affecting property identified as Assessor Parcel No. 
053-150-195 subject to the following amended list of project conditions; and, (2) To direct Town 
Staff to execute and issue the modified use permit at the conclusion of the required appeal 
period, measured seven-days from the date of the Planning Commission’s action.    
 

FINDINGS: 
 

a. Find that any potentially significant adverse environmental impacts associated 
with the PID project have been addressed with mitigations in a previously-
adopted environmental document (Initial Study and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration certified by the PID Board on July 21, 2010. 

 
b. Find that the proposed modifications are consistent with the goals and policies 

of the 1994 Paradise General Plan and zoning ordinances.  
 
c. Find that the project, in the context of the requested modifications, will be 

compatible with surrounding land uses and shall not be detrimental to the 
public's health, safety and general welfare because the proposed modifications 
are consistent with the intent of the original project approval and all necessary 
on and off-site improvements will be in place and functioning upon completion 
of the project. 

 
MODIFIED LIST OF USE PERMIT CONDITIONS: 

 
1. If any land use for which a use permit has been granted and issued is not established 

within three years of the use permit permit’s effective date, the use permit may 
become subject to revocation by the Town of Paradise. 

 



 8                     Oct 18, 2011 

2. Unless otherwise noted, it shall be the sole responsibility of the project developer to 
implement, monitor and fulfill the requirements of all conditions and mitigations 
assigned to this use permit. 

 
3. All work within the Clark Road public right of way is subject to Town issuance of an 

encroachment permit, which will require that the contractor be properly licensed and 
bonded with the Town of Paradise. 

 
4. Establish and maintain on-site parking facilities and pavement markings in 

accordance with all town parking ordinance regulations and the requirements of the 
Town Engineer. 

 
5. Outside light fixtures associated with the project shall be designed to not exceed a 

height of sixteen feet above finished grade and shall be shielded to prevent the direct 
projection of light onto adjoining and nearby properties. 

 
6. If any archaeological resources are uncovered during project construction activities, 

all work shall stop in the area of the find until a qualified archaeologist provides an 
appropriate evaluation of the discovery.  

 
7. Minor changes to the interior and/or exterior design of the project may be approved 

administratively by the Town Planning Director upon submittal of a written request 
for such changes, if the requested changes are consistent with the overall intent of 
the project and its approval action.  Any requested changes deemed by the Planning 
Director to be major or significant shall require a formal use permit modification 
review and the payment of the appropriate processing fees. 

 
8. Pay development impact fees prior to issuance of building permits for project 

construction in accordance with Paradise Municipal Code requirements. 
 
9. Fulfill the requirements of all mitigation measures assigned to the project via 

adoption of the mitigated negative declaration by the Paradise Irrigation District 
Board of Directors on August 18, 2010, in accordance with the required timing of 
such mitigation measures.  

 
CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING 

PERMIT 
 
ROADS AND ACCESS 
 
10. Submit and secure Town Engineer approval of six (6) copies of design plans for 

the construction of frontage improvements in accordance with the requirements 
outlined within the memorandum regarding the Paradise Irrigation District 
project from Town Engineer Dennis Schmidt dated October 6, 2010 and on file 
in the town Community Development Department.  Pay appropriate fees, 
provide the appropriate bonds and insurance certificates, and obtain town 
issued encroachment permit and construct all design-approved work in the 
right of way (including driveway approach and utility connections). All design 
features shall meet ADA requirements and comply with the Caltrans A-87 



 9                     Oct 18, 2011 

standard, Town ordinances, accepted engineering standards and the 
requirements of the Town Engineer.  Street frontage and driveway 
improvement plans must be approved PRIOR to the construction or installation 
of the required facilities. 

 
 Construct all proposed paved interior roadways/parking areas to the A-3a road 

standard (minimum 20 ft. wide, 2” AC, 6” AB curb, gutter or AC dike).  Areas 
subject to truck and heavy loading should have the structural section designed 
accordingly.  Paved parking facilities shall be designed in compliance with the 
Town of Paradise Off-street Parking Regulations.    

 
11. Deed forty feet from the center of the Clark Road right-of-way or provide a deed 

document showing that this requirement has been met. 
 
DRAINAGE 
 
12. Provide a final design solution for drainage per requirements of the Town Engineer 

and the INTERIM DRAINAGE DESIGN GUIDELINES prepared April 2, 1998. 
Drainage facilities shall be designed in a manner that provides for the establishment 
of all necessary drainage improvements to accommodate existing and additional 
project induced drainage flows without generating any off-site adverse effects.  

 
13. If legally required, obtain permits as necessary to realign the on-site storm drainage 

channel from the California Department of Fish and Game, Regional Water Quality 
Control Board and the Army Corps of Engineers. 

 
SANITATION 
 
14. Complete the requirements of the Town Onsite Sanitary Official concerning 

application, final system design, and issuance of permit approvals for installation of 
a sewage treatment and disposal system improvements to serve all proposed 
facilities.  Provide evidence thereof to the Town Community Development 
Department (Community Safety Services Division). 

 
SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
15. Submit three (3) copies of a detailed engineered site development and improvements 

plan showing all on-site and off-site project improvements and facilities as proposed 
and required.   Plans shall be prepared by a registered civil engineer (including final 
parking facility design and site drainage design) and submitted to the Public Works 
Department (Engineering Division) for review and approval.  Pay required site plan 
checking fee.  Construction and drainage improvement plans must be approved 
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION or installation of the required facilities.   

 
16. Pay appropriate processing fees and submit detailed grading plans and an estimate of 

cut/fill volume in accordance with the requirements of the Town Engineer.  If cut 
and fill volumes exceed 5,000 cubic feet, “engineered grading” requirements will be 
triggered (geotechnical report, etc.).  Engineered grading requirements may also be 
triggered if the building is proposed to be constructed upon fill material.  



 10                     Oct 18, 2011 

 
17. Incorporate Best Management Practices (BMPs) into the site design to insure that 

storm water runoff from the proposed facilities will not negatively influence storm 
water quality.  Verify if separate permits (e.g. National Pollution Discharge 
Elimination System Permit) are required to operate this facility with the Regional 
Water Quality Control Board.  

 
18. Show all easements of record on the site development and improvements plan as 

well as fifty-foot building setback lines measured from the centerline of Clark Road. 
Show required setbacks from storm drainage ways and facilities. 

 
19. Apply for and secure Town issuance of a grading permit satisfying all Engineering 

Division requirements and the current town adopted edition of the Uniform Building 
Code.  Pay applicable grading permit fees per current fee schedule. 

 
20. Properly abandon or relocate any easements that conflict with the design of the 

project. 
 
21. Make proper application to the Town of Paradise and pay applicable fees to facilitate 

the successful recordation of a lot line adjustment affecting properties identified as 
053-150-195, 053-012-020 and 053-012-018 in accordance with the project site plan 
submitted on September 16, 2010 and the requirements of the Town Engineer. 

 
22. Submit a detailed storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) to the State 

Regional Water Quality Control Board (along with the appropriate filing fee).  
Provide a copy of this approved plan to the Town of Paradise prior to initiation of 
grading activities. 

 
23. Submit a detailed soil erosion prevention plan to the Town Public Works 

Department for approval by the Town Engineer PRIOR to the start of any earthwork. 
Show all erosion control devices and sedimentation basins required by Paradise 
Municipal Code Section 15.04.280. 

 
24. Submit a detailed dust emissions control plan to the Town Public Works Department 

and to the Butte County Air Quality Management District for approval PRIOR to the 
start of any earthwork. 

 
25. Meet the requirements of the Town Building Official and the Town Fire Marshal 

regarding submittal of construction plans, interior automatic fire sprinkler plans, 
building permit applications, and all applicable Town adopted construction and fire 
code requirements. 

 
26. Apply for and secure administrative design review approval for the exterior design 

of the proposed facility building(s) and identification sign(s).  Building elevations 
shall be designed and exterior colors chosen in accordance with the requirements of 
the Town of Paradise Design Standards and shall include structural, design features 
and building materials that are compatible with existing commercial buildings. 

 



 11                     Oct 18, 2011 

27. Secure the issuance of a Town approved tree-felling permit prior to felling any 
qualifying trees. 

 
FIRE PROTECTION 
 
28. Install new water mains and new onsite fire hydrants in accordance with the 

requirements of the Paradise Fire Chief.  The new fire hydrants shall be 
installed and functioning prior to the placement of flammable building 
materials on the site, as determined by the Town Fire Chief.  Building permits 
may be issued prior to hydrant installation.   Fire apparatus access roadways 
must be maintained unobstructed and drivable by fire apparatus throughout 
the construction process.  Access roadways shall be capable of holding an 
imposed load of 75,000 pounds including in adverse weather conditions.  
Concrete slabs may be constructed and steel framing and shells erected prior to 
fire hydrant installation.  However wood frame and infill construction cannot 
commence until after the required fire hydrant is installed and operational.  

 
29. Apply for and secure the issuance of required permits from the Butte County Health 

Department and the Paradise Fire Department for installation and operation of the 
on-site fuel dispensing facility and for the use and storage of any hazardous 
materials. 

 
WATER 
 
30. Meet all requirements of the Paradise Irrigation District (PID) Provide material 

evidence of having fulfilled this condition to the Town Community Development 
Department (Community Safety Service Division). 

 
TREE FELLING 
 
31. Submit and secure Town Planning Director review and approval of a professionally 

designed and accurately mapped “Tree Protection Plan”  for the proposed project 
that provides for tree planting placement as well as existing tree protection measures 
(fencing, etc.); and prior to the commencement of ground disturbance site work 
(grading, etc.) for the project.  The Tree Protection Plan shall be developed in 
accordance with the General Tree Preservation Recommendations contained within 
the Arborist Report developed by Gallaway Consulting in July 2010 for the Paradise 
Irrigation District Corporation Yard project. 

 
32. All qualifying trees proposed to be retained and any native saplings proposed to be 

retained on the site as replacement trees shall be protected during construction 
activities in a manner consistent with the Town of Paradise Suggested Practices for 
Protection of Trees on Commercial, Quasi-Public and Multi-Family Residential 
Construction Sites.  

 
33. A certified arborist shall be engaged by the applicant to oversee the employment of 

tree protection measures during all related project site improvements construction 
that has the potential to effect trees to be retained. 

 



 12                     Oct 18, 2011 

34. The required landscape plan for the proposed Paradise Irrigation District commercial 
development project shall include provisions for the planting of evergreen climbing 
vines along perimeter fencing.  All required replacement trees shall be planted on-
site and within each landscape area, particularly in areas adjacent to residential land 
uses and in areas plainly visible from Clark Road.  A minimum of fifty percent of 
required replacement trees shall be conifer species.  Tree plantings shall be selected 
and ultimately approved by the Town for inclusion within the landscape plan 
primarily based upon their ability to provide summer shade for the project site.  
Smaller ornamental tree species (i.e. dogwood, crepe myrtle) shall not be considered 
suitable for purposes of mitigating the loss of native trees on the site and screening 
the proposed facilities from adjacent land uses. 

  
35. The approval action of this tree felling permit application shall only be valid and in 

effect for two years (twenty-four months) past its conditional approval date. 
 
CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO FINAL BUILDING INSPECTION AND 

CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY 
 
ROADS AND ACCESS 
 
36. Construct and install required project site frontage improvements in accordance with 

approved frontage improvement plans.  Construct all proposed paved interior 
roadways/parking areas to the A-3a road standard (minimum 20 ft. wide, 2” 
AC, 6” AB curb, gutter or AC dike).  Areas subject to truck and heavy loading 
should have the structural section designed accordingly.  Paved parking 
facilities shall be designed in compliance with the Town of Paradise Off-street 
Parking Regulations.    

  
37. Submit reproducible “as-built” improvement plans for Clark Road street 

improvements. 
 
 
SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
38. Construct all necessary site, drainage, access, wastewater treatment/disposal and 

other facilities improvements as required by the Town Engineer and the Town 
Onsite Sanitary Official.  All construction shall be in conformance with generally 
acceptable engineering and construction practices.   

 
39. Submit landscaping plans and application fee to the Community Development 

Department (planning division) in accordance with Paradise Municipal Code 
requirements.  IMPORTANT NOTE: No final building inspection or occupancy 
shall be permitted until the landscape plans for the project have been formally 
approved by the Town of Paradise and landscape materials have been installed (or 
bonded to guarantee installation). 

 
40. Meet the requirements of all other utility providers regarding the extension or 

relocation of utility service lines and the establishment of any necessary on site 
utility easements. 



 13                     Oct 18, 2011 

 
41. All new utility lines (electrical, cable television, telephone, etc.) shall be installed 

underground. 
 
42. Project site perimeter fencing shall be sight-obscuring such that interior facilities are 

substantially screened from Clark Road and adjacent residential properties.  Fencing 
proposed for the west boundary of the site should be off-set inward from the 
property line to allow for landscaping (photinia, English Laurel, evergreen climbing 
vines, etc.) to be installed along the exterior (west side) of the fencing.  The color 
and design of the fencing material shall be subject to review for compatibility with 
the Town of Paradise Design Standards.  The design of the exterior fencing shall not 
include the use of barbed wire. 

 
FIRE PROTECTION 
 
43. The security gate proposed to control vehicular access to the site shall operate 

automatically and shall meet the requirements of the Paradise Fire Chief.  
 
44. Meet all other project requirements of the Paradise Fire Department in accordance 

with the Fire Department development review comments/conditions dated October 
14, 2010 and on file with the Town Community Development Department. 

 
SANITATION 
 
45. Meet the requirements of Town onsite sanitation staff regarding inspection and 

approval for the construction and final design of the onsite sewage disposal system. 
 
CONDITIONS OF LAND USE OPERATION 
 
46. All land use activities associated with the function of the water utility corporation 

yard and operations facility shall be conducted in a manner that does not create noise 
disturbances across a real property line and in accordance with Town of Paradise 
noise ordinance regulations.  

 
47. Any future function of the water utility corporation yard and operations facility that 

contributes to or creates a traffic or pedestrian hazard attributable to the project shall 
be corrected to the reasonable satisfaction of and in a manner deemed acceptable to 
the Town Engineer within sixty days after receipt of a town-issued notification for 
correction. 

 
48. Any recommendations or mitigation measures developed in association with the 

conduct of a noise study or acoustical analysis for the project shall be incorporated 
into the design and function of the proposed corporation yard. 

 



 14                     Oct 18, 2011 

ROLL CALL VOTE (Item 5b – PID Use Permit Modification Request): 
 
AYES:  Commissioners Bolin, Jones, Woodhouse, Zuccolillo and Chair Grossberger.    
NOES:    None.   
ABSTAIN:  None.   
ABSENT:   None.   
 
 MOTION CARRIES. 
              
6. OTHER BUSINESS – None. 
 
7.        COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES – None. 

 
 8.        COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
 a.     Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff)  
 
At the request of Chair Grossberger, the Planning Commissioners concurred to place 
consideration of the Planning Commission Conduct of Meetings on the next available Planning 
Commission agenda.  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 
Date Approved:  
 
____________________________ 
April Grossberger, Chair         
    
 
Attest:  
 
___________________________ 
Joanna Gutierrez, Town Clerk   
 



 TOWN OF PARADISE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 PLANNING STAFF REPORT 

 MEETING DATE:  January 17, 2012 

 

FROM: Craig Baker, Community Development Director   AGENDA NO.  5 (a) 
SUBJECT: Visinoni Parcel Map Application (PL11-00156) 
DATE: January 11, 2012 AP 052-360-007 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

Applicant:   Visinoni Bros. 
5515 Clark Road 
Paradise, CA  95969 

 
 Surveyor:   L & L Surveying 
     P.O. Box 671 

Paradise, CA  95967 
 

Location:   678 Buschmann Road 
 

Requested Action:  Parcel map approval to divide an existing +3.3 acre property 
into four new parcels of record. 

 
Purpose:   To create three additional residential building sites. 

 
Project Density:  +1.21 dwellings per gross acre 

 
Present Zoning:  Rural Residential – 2/3-acre minimum (RR-2/3)  

 
General Plan  
Designation:    Rural Residential (RR) 

   
Existing Land Use:  Single-family residential 

 
Surrounding Land Use: North:  Buschmann Road 

East:  Meduim density residential 
South:  Meduim density residential 
West:  Meduim density residential 

 
Project site area:  +3.3 acres 

 
Environmental    
Determination:  Negative declaration 

 
Other:    An appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision can be 

made within ten (10) days of the decision date. 
 
NOTE: THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD BE IN ATTENDANCE 

OR THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY NOT TAKE ACTION ON THIS 

APPLICATION. 



Visinoni    
PL11-00156 
Page 2 
 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION: 

 
The project proponent is seeking Town of Paradise approval for a parcel map application 
to divide an existing +3.3 acre property into four new parcels of record.  The project site is 
zoned Rural Residential – 2/3 acre minimum (RR-2/3) and is located in the southwest 
portion of the Paradise community on the south side of Buschmann Road.  
 
The property is currently improved with a single family dwelling and a somewhat smaller 
accessory storage structure, both of which are located upon what is proposed to become 
Parcel 1.  The gross parcel sizes proposed for each parcel are 1.5 acres (Parcel 1) and 
0.67 acres (Parcels 2, 3 and 4).  Proposed future use of the resultant parcels is single-
family residential.  Surrounding land use is characterized by medium-density single-family 
residential land uses.  
 
As designed, Parcel No. 1 would have +334 lineal feet of public road frontage along 
Buschmann Road.  Access for Parcel Nos. 2, 3 and 4 would be provided via the 
establishment of a private road easement connecting to Buschmann Road and 
encumbering portions of all four proposed parcels.  The project includes a proposal to 
develop the proposed onsite private road easement with a paved private road (including 
drainage facilities) constructed to the appropriate Town standard with a turn-around facility 
at its southern terminus to facilitate fire and emergency vehicle access.   Development of 
road access and drainage improvements will not result in the felling and removal of any 
qualifying trees.   
 
Please refer to the enclosed initial study and proposed negative declaration prepared for 
this project for a more detailed project description and additional analysis of the project. 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
As referenced above, a proposed negative declaration document has been prepared by staff 
concerning the proposed project and is enclosed with this staff report for your review.  
Development of the initial study did not result in the identification of any potentially significant 
adverse environmental impacts and no mitigation measures were incorporated into the 
document. Therefore, the project, if conditioned prudently, will not result in direct and 
significant adverse effects upon the existing environmental setting. 
 
If conditionally approved by the Planning Commission as recommended, the proposed 
project would be consistent with the goals and land use policies of the Paradise General Plan 
and the zoning assigned to the site.  The project should also be consistent with surrounding 
parcel sizes and compatible with surrounding land uses. 



 
 
Visinoni     
PL11-00156 
Page 3 
 
 
Collectively, Town staff and Paradise Irrigation District staff are supportive of the project and 
have developed recommended conditions of project approval designed to assure the orderly 
development of this portion of the Paradise community.  Accordingly, staff is recommending 
project approval, based upon and subject to the following list of findings and conditions: 
 
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR APPROVAL: 
 
a.  Find that no potentially significant adverse environmental impacts have been 

identified within the environmental document prepared for the project and adopt  a 
negative declaration. 

 
b. Find that the project, as conditioned, is consistent with the goals and policies of the 

Paradise General Plan, because the resulting sizes and uses of the parcels would 
be consistent with existing land use in the area, and adequate infrastructure would 
be in place to serve the parcels. 

 
c. Find that the project, as conditioned, is consistent with the spirit and intent of the 

zoning district in which the project site is situated, because the land use proposed 
for the parcels would be residential and parcel sizes proposed are consistent with 
the requirements of the zone.  

 
d. Find that the project, as conditioned, will not result in a significant adverse effect 

on existing plant and animal life in the project vicinity for the following reasons: 
 
 1. The project site is located within an area that has been extensively altered by 

residential and agricultural development spanning several decades. 
 
 2. No known outstanding wildlife habitat exists in the immediate project vicinity; 

and 
 
 3. No known rare or endangered plants exist in the immediate project vicinity. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt the required findings as provided by staff and approve the Visinoni parcel map 
application (PL11-00156) proposing to create four parcels of record from an existing +3.3 
acre property located at 678 Buschmann Road, subject to the following conditions: 



Visinoni    
PL11-00156 
Page 4 
 

CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO RECORDATION 

 OF FINAL PARCEL MAP 
 
ROADS AND ACCESS 
 
1.  Submit three copies of engineered road construction and drainage Improvement 

plans for the proposed on-site private road to the Engineering Division for 
approval.  Pay appropriate plan check and inspection fees.  Plans must be 
stamped and wet-signed by a licensed civil engineer.  All elements of the 
engineered plans shall be designed in accordance with the requirements of the 
Town Engineer, based upon accepted engineering standards and the town-
adopted A-2a road standard.  Road and drainage plans must be approved PRIOR 
to the construction or installation of the required facilities.  

 
2.  Access to parcels for ingress and egress/public utilities shall be shown on the 

final parcel map. 
 
3.  Deed thirty feet from the center of the Buschmann Road right-of-way to the Town 

of Paradise or provide a recorded deed document showing that this requirement 
has been met. 

 
4.  Construct or defer by covenant executed with the Town of Paradise a one-half 

street section upgrade improvement along the project site frontage of 
Buschmann Road to the town-adopted B-2 road standard. 

 
5. Place the following notes on the final map information data sheet:   
 
 a. “Prior to the issuance of a building permit authorizing residential 

development upon Parcel Nos. 2, 3 or 4, the project developer shall  
apply for and secure town issuance of an encroachment permit, physically 
abandon the existing driveway connection to Buschmann Road serving the 
existing dwelling and construct on-site private road and drainage 
improvements in accordance with town-approved private road and 
drainage improvement plans for the Visinoni parcel map. The private road 
shall be constructed to the town-adopted A-2a standard.  Street signs 
and all pavement markings shall be installed as required and at the 
developer’s sole expense.”  

 
 b. “Upon completion of the on-site private road improvements and prior to 

the issuance of a building permit authorizing residential development 
upon Parcel Nos. 2, 3 or 4, the project developer shall apply for and 
secure town approval for a change of address for the existing residence



Visinoni     
PL11-00156 
Page 5 
   
   located upon Parcel 1 from a Buschmann Road address to an address 

assigned to the new private road.” 
 
 c. “If more than 50 cubic yards of soil are displaced to accommodate road 

and drainage improvements, the project developer shall apply for and 
secure town issuance of a grading permit satisfying all engineering 
division requirements and the current adopted edition of the UBC and pay 
applicable grading permit fees per current fee schedule.” 

 
 d. “Prior to the commencement of construction activities associated with 

private road and drainage improvements, the project developer shall 
submit an engineered erosion and dust control plan to the Town 
Engineering Division for approval by the Town Engineer .  All erosion 
control devices and sedimentation basins required by the PMC 
15.04.280.shall be shown on the plan.” 

 
6. Apply for and secure town approval for a new road name for assignment to the 

proposed new private road.   Pay current road name review fee. 
 
7. Provide a recorded road maintenance agreement in a form deemed acceptable 

to the Town Engineer obligating all owners of the resultant parcels to participate 
in the maintenance of the proposed onsite private road and drainage 
improvements. 

 
SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
8.  All easements of record shall be shown on the final parcel map. 
 
9.  Indicate a fifty foot building setback line measured from the center line of 

Buschmann Road, a thirty foot building setback line measured from the center of 
the proposed on site private road easement and a thirty foot building setback line 
measured from the center of Kemlyn lane. 

 
10. The proposed on-site private road and public utility easement shall encumber all 

private road and drainage improvements. 
 
11. Place the following notes on the final map information data sheet: 
 

a. “No fences shall be established within the private road and public utility 
easement serving these parcels.  In addition, no solid wood or masonry 
fences over four feet in height shall be established within building setback 
areas.” 



Visinoni  
PL11-00156 
Page 6 
 

b. “Prior to the issuance of building permits authorizing residential development 
of Parcels 3 or 4, the project developer shall submit a storm water mitigation 
plan that minimizes any adverse effects of increased storm water run-off 
upon adjacent properties and meets the requirements of the Town Engineer.” 

 
12. Establish an on-site drainage easement that encumbers all land within ten feet of 

the center of the on-site drainage and offer for dedication to the Town of 
Paradise as proposed. 

 
13. Remove any existing fencing located within land to be offered for dedication to 

the Town of Paradise for additional public street right-of-way. 
  
 
SEWAGE DISPOSAL 
 
 
14. Satisfy all requirements of the Town of Paradise Onsite Sanitary Official 

concerning the design of the final parcel map including delineation of all areas 
deemed to be unsuitable for wastewater disposal 

 
15. Provide material evidence to the Town of Paradise that the existing water well 

serving the existing residence on the site has been abandoned in a manner 
deemed satisfactory to the Butte County Environmental Health Department. 

 
16. Secure the issuance of a Town of Paradise septic system alteration upgrade 

permit and upgrade and alter the existing septic system serving the existing 
residence on the site as outlined in the memorandum from Wastewater division 
staff dated August 24, 2011 and on file in the Town Community Development 
Department.  

 
 
UTILITIES 
  
17. Meet the requirements of the Paradise Irrigation District (PID) in accordance with 

the comments provided by PID staff for the Visinoni project, dated May 23, 2011 
and on file with the town Community Development Department. 

 
18. Meet all other requirements of utility companies regarding the establishment of 

necessary public utility easements.  
 
 
 



Visinoni     
PL11-00156 
Page 7 
 

 

FIRE PROTECTION 
 
19. Place the following notes on the final map information data sheet:   
 

a. “The design of proposed private road access improvements shall be 
constructed in accordance with the requirements outlined within the Fire 
Department Project Condition Letter and memorandum dated June 1, 2011 
on file in the Town Community Development Department and shall include 
an adequate turnaround facility at its southern terminus to accommodate fire 
and emergency vehicle access in accordance with town adopted road 
standards.” 

 
b. “The project developer shall implement and maintain a fuel reduction plan for 

the parcels meeting the requirements of the Paradise Fire Department in 
accordance with the Paradise Fire Department Condition Letter and 
memorandum dated June 1, 2011 for the Visinoni parcel map application 
and on file in the Town Community Development Department.  The fuel 
reduction plan shall be binding upon future owners of Parcel Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4 
and shall be recorded with the final parcel map.”  

 
 c. “All buildings constructed upon Parcel Nos. 1, 2, 3 or 4 shall be constructed 

in accordance with the California Fire Code’s Wildland/Urban Interface Code 
in effect at the time of building permit application and in accordance with the 
Paradise Fire Department Project Condition Letter and memorandum dated 
June 1, 2011 for the Visinoni parcel map application and on file in the Town 
Community Development Department.” 

 
20. Meet all other requirements of the Paradise Fire Department in accordance with 

the Fire Department Project Condition Letter for the Visinoni parcel map dated 
June 1, 2011 and on file in the Town of Paradise Community Development 
Department. 

 
 
OTHERS 
 
  
21. Provide written documentation verifying payment of current property taxes and 

payment of any assessment liens imposed by the Town. 
 
22.  Provide monumentation as required by the Town Engineer in accordance with 

accepted town standards. 



 
Visinoni     
PL11-00156 
Page 8 
 
 
23. Pay appropriate funds to the local recreation district per requirements of the 

Paradise subdivision ordinance to offset impact (cumulative) upon area-wide 
recreation facilities.  Provide evidence of payment to the Town Community 
Development Department planning division. 

 
24. The following notes shall appear upon the final parcel map information sheet:   
 
  a. “At the time of building permit issuance, owner will be required to pay any 

Town of Paradise adopted development impact fees.” 
 
 b. “If any archaeological resources are uncovered during the course of future 

development or construction activities, all work shall stop in the area of the 
find until a qualified archaeologist provides an appropriate evaluation of 
the discovery.” 



 
ATTACHMENTS FOR 

   PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA NO. 5(a) 
 
 
1. Project vicinity map. 
 
2. Notice sent to surrounding property owners for the public hearing regarding the 

Visinoni project. 
 
3. Mailing list of property owners notified of the public hearing regarding the Visinoni 

project. 
 
4. Email regarding the Visinoni parcel map from Town Engineer Dennis Schmidt, dated  

May 19, 2011 
 
5. Letter dated May 23, 2011 from P.I.D. representative Neil Essila. 
 
6. Residential Fire Department Condition Letter and memorandum for the Visinoni 

project from Fire Marshal Tony Lindsey, both dated June 1, 2011 
 
7. Memorandum from Assistant Onsite Official Bob Larson dated August 24, 2011 

indicating compliance with the town’s sewage disposal regulations. 
 
8. Email regarding the Visinoni parcel map from Town Engineer Dennis Schmidt, dated 

September 11, 2011 . 
 
9.  Initial study (environmental review document) and proposed negative declaration 

developed by staff for the Visinoni project. 
 
10.   Parcel map submitted by L&L Surveying on behalf of Visinoni Bros. on October 11, 

2011. 
 
 
n:\….\cdd\planning\staff reports\PL11-00156.rpt 
 
 





























































 
 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Paradise Planning Commission    AGENDA NO.  6(a) 

 
FROM:  Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Review and Discussion Regarding Possible Changes to the current Planning 

Commission Procedural Rules for the Conduct of Planning Commission Meetings 
 
DATE:  January 11, 2012 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
All Planning Commission meetings are required to be conducted in accordance with the current 
Procedural Rules for the Conduct of Planning Commission Meetings, established via adoption of 
Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001 on February 12, 1996.  
 
During their regularly-scheduled meeting of October 18, 2011, the Planning Commission concurred 
to direct staff to agendize a discussion of the current procedural rules of conduct for the next 
Planning Commission meeting to consider whether to revise and/or update the procedural rules 
via adoption of a new resolution document that would rescind Resolution No. 96-001 and establish 
a revised set of procedural rules.  Accordingly, staff has placed this item on the Planning 
Commission agenda as directed. 
 
 
REQUESTED ACTIONS: 
 
1. Please review the attached copy of the current procedural rules of conduct and be prepared 

to discuss any possible revisions with other Planning Commissioners, members of the 
attending public and staff.  
  

2. If it is determined by a majority consensus of the Planning Commission that any revisions to 
the procedural rules is desirable, direct staff to return with a resolution document that would 
rescind Resolution No. 96-001 and implement the desired revisions to the procedural rules of 
conduct during the next regularly-scheduled Planning Commission meeting.   
 

If a new resolution document is adopted by the Planning Commission, any revisions to the procedural 
rules of conduct would become effective immediately.  














	pc_agenda_011712
	pc_min_101811
	5a_visinoni
	5a_agenda_summary
	5a2_agenda_summary
	5a3_agenda_summary

	6a_procedures
	6a_agenda_summary
	6a_pc_res_96-001


